
Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach

Board of Commissioners’Meeting

Ⅳ血y‾ 9;郷士T

The meeting ofthe Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town ofMimesott Beach, WaS held

Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 7:00 P.M at the Mimesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Tim Fowler, Commissioner

Carolyn Casey, Commissioner Cl距Braly and Commissioner Eber Warren.

Board members absent: nOne

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager, Adan Garfinkel, Doma Reynolds, Becca

Lang and Attomey Dum from Arlington Place.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, Ca11ed the meeting to order at 7:00pm

With a moment of誼ence and-1ead.everyone-ih the Pledge ofa皿iince to the H祖

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the May 9, 2017 BOC meeting

agenda. Commissioner Fowler asked to add to #6 to old business: Ordinance review as

PreSented by the Plaming Board last month・ Commissioner Warren moved to approve the

agenda as revised. All ayes.

-Mdyor‾Pbtter called‾for any diScusSion or reVi請on to ApI:il‾丁1二二押すTmeeting血ihutes.

Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public Comments: Mr. Glem Dum, attOmey for Arlington Place, Said he wanted to clear

up any confusion about the cottage lots in Arlington Place and how they have been set up.

He said ordinances do requlre PreaPPrOVal for subdividing and he thought the cottage lots

had been approved・ Historica11y, he reviewed the minutes ofthe BOC meetings in 2012

wiith diScusSibn of孤e Plins of証e cottage‾lbts.丁le ex両ihed‾APS 5th葛SupPlもmental

Declarations were provided to the BOC on how the lots were to be set up. The land goes

With the footprint ofthe cottage units with the rest ofthe lot held in common by the

OWnerS Ofthe cottage units. He said the declaration explained the transfer of interest of

COttage units. On the Master Plan these lots are zoned multifamily but it doesn,t address

the ownership ofthe units. They did not think any further subdivision approval was

required because the BOC had the declaration infomation and had approved the October

2012-‾MdsterP丁in. Hats for two of証elbts W宜i5h_have uhits on them‾have a止eady‾been

filed. Mr・ Dum asked the BOC to approve the subdivisions ofthe third lot with cottage

units. He assured the BOC they wanted to do what was needed to come into compliance.

Town Manager’s report: Three zonmg Pemit applications were submitted. Approved

Were a neW home construction in AP and two sheds. Mr. Ron Spadin, 16 Needle Rush Dr.

has applied for Variance in response to a denied pemit for a shed.

-Planrihg_Bbard‾Report: Chairman Adam ‾Gatfickel‾reported the ‾PB‾ did not meet in

May. He also reported someone has expressed interest injoining the PB and that

Commissioner Fowler handling this.



Old Business: for discussion and possible motion or action.

1.　Mayor Po請er reported that he & Commissioner Fowler met with the Town’s

Attomey, Jimmie Hicks, On Apri1 25 from = :30am-12:30pm conceming the following:

1. Plaming Board changes conceming the R-MU, eSPeCially the waste water

treatment issue. Out ofthe discussion, Mayor Potter said he & Commissioner Fowler,

With the approval ofthe entire board, WOuld recommend this part ofthe changes be sent

back to the Plaming Board for review. They are recommending to strike the paragraph

and to rely on the county and state requlrementS.

2. The dog park & fenced storage pemits that were denied because they were not

On the Oct6ber 2012TReViied‾Mdster‾Plin. (暁ndihg reVi魂bn of証e‾Mdster‾Plをn)

3. Mayor Potter said they talked about Ms. Becca Lang granting of accessory

buildings without the Town’s zoning administrator’s approval. He said they detemined

that building pemits can be pemitted “after the fact" ofbeing built as Iong as they meet

the requlrementS and get the approval ofthe zoning administrator. Mr. Hicks said to

PreVent this from happening again the town might want to establish a late fee for anything

done prior to approval. The BOC may want to consider this in the future.

4∴MayorPotter s肴id‾they diicussed‾the variince apPli繭ibn on one of証ose

accessory buildings, because the pemit has been denied due to the fact it does not meet

the setback requlrementS. Mr. Ron Spadin has applied for a variance. On June 5, 2017, at

7:00pm the Board of A句ustments will meet to consider this variance request to detemine

What hardship the owner has that he did not create himself They also discussed the

PrOCedural changes for the Board ofA句ustments. They have to justify and docunent in

detail the reasons their decisions. He recommended the BOC to review these requlrementS
‾ih the Code ofOrdihances: 15-1.U70-.U7T

5・ The Plaming Board must pass a resolution on recommendations they propose to

the effect that their proposals are consistent with the land use plan for Mimesott Beach.

2.　Arlington Place - Commissioner Fowler passed to Mayor Potter. Mayor Potter said

Mr. Dum had summarized somewhat the situation conceming the issues with the cottages

in Arlington Place. He said this goes back to 2012 when Burton Fams Development

Wanted to put cottages on 3 lots: 62E, 62A and 62. That came to the BOC and was denied
‾because at that tiine these‾1bts on the-MdsterTlin were zonedsihgle fainily-fots∴They

Wanted to change them back to multifamily lots. They were initially multifamily lots,

Were Changed to single family lots and they came back to make them multifamily lots for

the cottages. Mr. Warren made a motion to not accept the Plaming Board’s

recommendation to allow it. The Master Plan was denied September l l, 2012, because of

the ``attached and unattached” issue. To make the lots multifamily unit they had to be

attached according to our attomey. At the next meeting there was a cIosed session with

the‾Tbwh’S attomey‾ih which the iisue was res61Ved‾祖e cottages-had‾to‾be atta6hedニ‾Mi.

Dum, at that meeting, Said Arlington Place would revised their Master Plan. They

PreSented the Board with the October 2012 Revised Master Plan which was approved in
November 13, 2012 with lots 62E, 62A and 62 designated as multifamily. Mayor Potter

Said the Arlington Place Declarations are not the Town ofMimesott Beach’s

administrative document and not an issue for the town. The Declaration has to fall within

the Town ofMimesott Beach’s ordinances. The Town’s Ordinances trumps the

De61aratibns∴Mdyor|]btter s缶id‾the cottages were presented‾to the‾Tbwn as one owner,

Burton Fams Development Co, LLC and they were presented as cottages to rent to people



Stay in rather血an send them to Oriental or New Bem. They were never presented that

they would be sold to individual owners. On November 27, 2013, COttage A on lot 62E

WaS SOld to William and Suzame Lockhart by deed without a plat. It was sold, Without an

approved plat, by deed only. Mayor Potter said two weeks earlier (4/26/1 7) Becca Lang
brou岳ht a I51al for工ot 6Z for-丘iS Signature.丁le sald‾he‾had‾ never signed-a rjlat for the

COttageS before. He said he went online to the Register ofDeeds and pulled up a11 ofthe

Plats for Burton Fams Development Co, LLC. There is where he found the deed for
COttage A on lot 62E. He said he wondered why he had to sign the new plat when the first

OneS Were SOld without his signature. Next a plat was recorded on May 2, 2014, for

COttage C on lot 62E and sold to James and Brenda Bell on July 23, 2014 by deed and

recorded plat. This plat was unsigned by Mayor Potter or any designated Mimesott Beach

O軒idial: ‾MayorTbtter s肴id-he called工ym工ewii,Regiiter ofDeedS for‾PainIibo Cb, tO

ask how the plat was recorded without his signature. She told him she only looks for Skip

Lee’s signature. Mayor Potter said Skip Lee signed the plat without a Town O節cial’s

Signature which is an i11egal record. However, the two cottages were sold and then on

Apri1 16, 2015, the last ofthe cottages, B Lot 62E, WaS SOld to Brian and Karen Ellenberg

by deed and plat. NC General Statutes 4730 1 1FE states a local o綿cial/authority has to

Sign the plat. A plat for 62A was recorded on June l l, 2015 without a Town O触cial’s

;ignature・ On丁uly l , 20-13; cottage A on-1bt 62A was s61d‾toRichard‾andViigiriiaV61t‾by

deed and unsigned plat. On October 9, 2015, COttage B on lot 62A was sold to Gregory

and Tonia Thompson by deed and unsigned plat. He said both Becca Lang and Attomey

Sara Delanar wanted to know why he would not sign the current plat. Mayor Potter said

he could not sign anything that was not approved by the Board of Commissioners. These

Plats have not gone through the process as govemed by the Town’s ordinances 151.325
“Plat sha11 be required on any subdivision ofland, PurSuant tO G.S 160A-371. A final plat

§hal丁be prepared; approved‾ and‾recorded‾pursuant to proVi魂bns ofthi§ ordihance

Whenever any subdivision of land takes place.” Ordinance 1 5 1.326 says “Approval

Prerequisite to plat recordation pursuant to G.S. 160A-373, nO final plat of a subdivision
With the jurisdiction ofthe town as established in 1 5 1.288 ofthis ordinance sha11 be

recorded by the Register ofDeeds ofthe county until it has been approved by the Town

Commissioners as provided herein.’’Mayor Potter said that is why he has not signed the

new plat and will not sign it until the procedures have been followed. He said he would

not‾have a pr6blem Sighihg‾it once‾it‾has gone租ough the process∴MdyorTbtter sald‾

Ordinances are in place to maintain the character ofthe neighborhood so the owners of

PrOPerties are protected from certain changes without going through the proper process

and to protect property values. Mayor Potter read an email he sent to David Owen and

Adam Lovelady at the SchooI of Goverrment in Chapel Hill, eXPertS in the area of Land

Use for their opinion. This email is attached and may be viewed at the Town Hall. Mayor

Potter said in doing his research he found procedural issues in NCGS 160A-372, 373, 374,

了75; 47二3U∴Mdyor_Pbtter sald;ih‾hii oI5ihibn, the‾board‾needsto d弓terinihe wliether工ots

62, 62A & 62E make a subdivision by separating out the cottages to different owners. If

they are considered exempted from subdivision regulations, the mayor’s signature is not

needed・ Mayor Potter said he is hoping this can be detemined. Ifthey are not exempt,

Burton Fams Development Co LLC will have to go through the process to get approval

from the Plaming Board and Board of Commissioners before the plats can be recorded.

Mayor Potter said Sara Delamar, attOmey for Arlington Place, had Josh Nobles, SurveyOr

for ArlihgtonH去・Ce, tO giVe the new I51at to C工i訂Bfaly,Tbwn ComIhiiSibner, thi坤at for

Lot 62 Mill Creek. The legend on the plat states: “Certificate ofApproval for recordation.

I hereby certify the map of cottage A as depicted is consistent with the zomng pemit



issued by the Zoning Administrator Jeff Bland for the Town ofMimesott Beach on

October l l , 201 6.” Mayor Potter concurred it was consistent with what Jeff Bland signed.

He asked why he had to sign this map. Mr. Dum said he was not sure. He said they were

acknowledging that they misinterpreted some time ago what Mayor Potter said about his

Signature not needed‾ and‾that they need‾to get subdiVi託bn approval and‾to‾1b6k‾into

getting subdivision exemption ifthat will make it easier. Mr. Dum said they came here to
SuggeSt he sign the plat or approve, after the fact,血e subdivision map under discussion.

Mayor Potter said he recalled that taking place. At that time, the plats had not been

recorded. That was 2012. He said he was wrong because he did need to sign the plats.

Mr. Dum said they just hope to get the plats approved after the fact. Mayor Potter said

they need to make everything legal. Mr. Dum said these cottages are a different

COn五ur宙ibn ofa‾工もwhhouse. The_1and‾under the footpriht of証e “towhhouse”-goes wiith

the property. Commissioner Fowler summarized the issues saymg One Oftwo things need

to happen‥ either we get a response from the SOG saying “yes, this is exempt” and things

ProCeed or we have to go through the approval process for a subdivision with proper

docunents for all three lots. Becca Lang asked ifa whole new Master Plan needed to be

revised to include the Dog Park (PrOPOSed) and the outdoor fenced storage area (existing)?

Mayor Potter said yes. He said the storage area needs to be dismantled or the Master Plan
葛has to‾be reViied-to‾ih61ude‾it. Zbhihg perinits for eaうh were dc壷d-because they didinot

appear on the Revised Master Plan dated October 2012.

Commissioner Fowler asked if#6 on the agenda could be move up for discussion next?

A11 agreed.

6. Review of Proposed Ordinance changes as presented by the Plaming Board at the April

meetihg. Comini料ibnerFもwler reported-1dst month theTlanhihg‾Bbard‾presented‾ to the

BOC their recommendations for the UDO. He said he and Mayor Potter talked with the

town’s attomey as reported earlier. Commissioner Fowler said in his view a11 looked fine.

He said regarding the waste water treatment provision in the R-MU, there is language that

is open to interpretation and therefore confusing. He proposed the town get out ofthe

WaSte Water management SyStemS altogether. The only requlrement in the ordinances

WOuld be to comply with the regulations ofthe county, State and federal govemments and

to_have any waste water treatment systems represented_on the純1ali51証CominiiSibner

Fowler moved to send the waste water treatment provision in the R-MU back to the

Plaming Board to reconsider. Mayor Potter asked for a vote. All ayes.

3. Town Cleanup - Commissioner Braly reported clean-up WaS COmPleted in one day.

He said Mr. Paul Toler donated the use ofone ofhis vehicles and drove it for us at no cost.

We fueled his truck in payment. It was a successful day. Cost without the dunping fee is

$650.25. Last year there was 13.9 tons compared to this spring of7.74 tons. Mayor Potter

thariked- everyone for theirhel王).

4. Town Hall renovations: Commissioner Braly passed out copies ofthe quotes received.

He explained the di節erences in the bids. He moved to award the contract to Tarheel

Building System for his bid of$72,764. A11 ayes. Commissioner Braly said we need to

Select the coIor for the exterior walls. Commissioner Casey “volunteered” to make that

decision. Commissioner Braly asked who owned the a句acent lot because we need to

COntaCt証e owner for periniiSibn to cut the丁l証ge I弄he trees on the property‾lihe∴Mdyor

Potter said the property is owned by First Capital Properties in New Bem.



5・ Country Club Drive West - Commissioner Braly reported that nothing has been done in

the last two weeks because ofrain and equipment issues. Work will get underway as soon

as equlPment is working and things dry out a bit. The French drain is working! Mr.

Clerkin askedわout some issues he has with his stone wa11. Commissioner Braly said he

WOul机alk with‾hiin∴MdyorTbtter thahked‾hiin for拙ofhiS wofk.

New Business: for discussion and possible motion or action.

1. CD matures 5/10/17 - Commissioner Warren said he had met with Commissioner

Braly about the needs for the Town Hall renovations and it did not appear there was a

need to cash in any CD because we have anple funds in First Citizens. Commissioner

Warren read the maturity dates ofall ofthe CDs at First South Bank: 8/24/17, 9/1 1/17,

9/15717; 1-1/28/17-and‾3/1771& H己moved‾to renew剃3丁for 13_ mo. at 70%. AI丁

ayeS・

2. Proposed budget 2017-2018 - Commissioner Warren reported in the new budget he

had deleted two line items: donations and recreations. Revenues $346,800 and

Expenditures of $346, 800. This budget will be approved at the regular BOC meeting

6/13/17. Payro11 increases were given to a11 empIoyees. Any changes, Please let us

血ow‾before the next meetihg. CbminiSSibner「∇ nen mOVed-toliave a publib.hearihg

June 13 2017 forthe budget. All ayes.

3. Infomal Construction Contract Policy葛Commissioner Fowler read the new Infomal

Construction Contract Policy. All ayes.

4. FinanciaI Report - Commissioner Warren reported revenues are coming in timely and

expenses are wel丁und料‾budget. Sうveral expenses under account 406‾ were transferred‾

to Powell Bill expenses. Commissioner Warren moved to transfer $10,000 from #395

Fund Balance to #434-436 Powell Bill expenses in the budget. All ayes.

Commissioner Warren reported the town is financially sound. Expenses and revenues are

in line for this time ofthe year. The town’s current assets as ofApri1 30, 2017 are: First

Citizen’s Bank Checking $1 8,277.47; First Citizen’s MM $199,943.22; First South Bank &

Savings $21 7,366.06; North Carolina Management Trust is $201 ,587.82; Petty Cash

珊・00∴The town currently‾has 5_CDs atHist SbuthBarik & SaVihgs orOOO; 50;000;

$40,249.74; $21,173.62, $20,901.71; $20,174.75). Total assets to the Town are atotal of

$885,113.62.

Misce1量aneous: Commissioner Fowler said Amy Edge has expressed interest in being on

the Plaming Board. She is a property owner in Mimesott Beach. Commissioner Fowler

Will invite her to the next PB meeting.

Cbm血i§Sibner‾Warren moved‾to adjburn. All ayes

Doma Scott, Town Clerk


